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Chapter 1 Introduction




It’s the Coach’s Fault





"It's the coach's fault..."


This phrase is usually attributed toactivities in the field of sports.
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In this book however, I'd like to take a look at the phrase, not just sports related, but also in the social environment. Sometimes we can look at things that have absolutely nothing to do with sports; we can look at how something develops; we can look at a social activity; we can look at an academic activity and we can look at something in the business field; we get evaluated from so many different viewpoints and in the end, regardless of whether the result is negative or positive, we can look back and say, "it's the coach’s fault".





Chapter 2


Why should you read this book...?
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"There is almost always someone watching..."





"There is almost always someone watching..."


This phrase is usually attributed to activities in the field of sports. In this book however, I'd like to look at the phrase from another vantage point; not just sports related, but also in the social environment. Sometimes we can look at a sports activity and apply what we see in it to a situation that has absolutely no direct connection to an athletic activity.


We can look at how something develops in the athletic environment... and we can apply it to a social activity... we can apply it to an academic activity or we can apply it to something in the business field. We all get evaluated based on many different criteria and, in the end, regardless of whether the result is negative or positive, we can look back and say, "it's the coaches fault."




[image: ]


There is always someone watching....





With very few exceptions, every time someone does something (good or bad), in some manner it is possible to say that it's the coach's fault. Coaches are also teachers, parents and others in positions of authority. In a different sense, we are all coaches. Every one of us who comes in contact with others is placed in a position to teach. Even when we don’t consciously make an effort to do so, our actions affect those around us and if we are in any way, shape or form in a leadership position, then we are coaching.


The successful individuals who were taught well and prepared for the task they accomplished... They had coaches.
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Artland Dragons on the way up... with D. Strauch and C. Fleming





Nothing happens in a vacuum... Even when someone accomplishes something "seemingly" on their own, without assistance... Somewhere there was a motivating element. It might even be a negative experience. That player, who was cut from a team and later becomes a very good player may have been motivated by the coach who cut him. Yes, that player must go out and work his tail off to become a good player ... but he derives his motivation from the man who said he was not ready... In essence ... It was that coach's fault.


Coaches can show them the way…. But they have to do the work.
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C. Wiegand fought through the pain and disappointment of injuries
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In the Spring of 2016 she was awarded a scholarship to play at Gardner-Webb University
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V. Karambatsa as a youth player in Leipzig in 2008


V. Karambatsa was a member of the Greek National Team in 2015
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reunited in 2016-2017 while coaching the Women's Bundesliga Team in Gruenberg, Germany





For me, as a coach, it feels somewhat like an architect or interior designer who has a choice regarding accepting two job offers.


One potential client offers you a large amount of money to build something for him. He gives you all of the specifications and designs concepts. He provides all of the materials and funds.


Another interested party offers you less money and all he says is “Here is an idea of what I want. Build me something good, something I will like. Here are the funds you will need.”


From the standpoint of personal income and headaches, the first client is certainly the best option, but there is something about the second opportunity.


What? You might ask.


It’s the feeling of pride and accomplishment. It’s yours. You started with nothing and put yourself into it. It’s a part of you.


There is a definite distinction between coaching and teaching. Most coaches who are worth their salt are capable of coaching. Coaching is sometimes all about managing. Your players are generally well-skilled, and your job is to direct them to victory. You manage the game with offensive and defensive tactics. You manage playing time. No, it’s not always easy, but the more skilled your players are, the better your chances of succeeding.


Teaching Basketball - now that is a completely different story. It is especially unique when it involves starting with players who have never played or who have minimal experience.


There is a special feeling in your heart when you look out on to the floor and see players who learned the game from its complicated beginnings and emerged on the other end and fundamentally solid players. Should one or two of them manage to excel and become really good players, then your sense of pride increases exponentially. I have had the pleasure and privilege of working with some great young individuals. With some of them, it is fair to say that I have gone full-circle.
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A.Potratz (3rd from Right) started with me in Quakenbrueck
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In 2016-2017 I had the opportunity to coach A. Potratz in the Women's Professional League in Germany (2.DBBL)





To have two players simultaneously playing professionally for me, who had both been set on their courses in my program made me feel really good.


Further down the road, to still have contact and good relations with former players always makes you feel good about what you’ve done.




[image: ]


Detlef Musch / Andreas Helmkamp
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Detlef left Fulda and went on to have very successful career - first at Davidson College, then in the German Professional League and on the German National Team as well .. as did James Marsh (right)
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No .. It's not just about the players who go to college or make it to the professional level.
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S. Tarasewicz was a "late starter" who began playing in 2015...in 2017. In just two years, after putting in the extra time and effort, she was among the top scorers in her league. For me, it is just as rewarding to see her performing as a contributing member of my Women's Team in Germany in 2017, as it is to send other players on to college or professional teams. Aside from practicing, she also found the time to work full-time as a “Social-Jurist” and to assist with the translation of my book.





I have had the pleasure and privilege of working with so many great young individuals. Some of them essentially began with me. Others are players whose paths crossed with mine along the journey. I’ll tell you more about many of them later. In some way we are all coaches. In our families, our communities, our jobs and in our teams... someone is looking to us for guidance... even if we don't realize it... In a manner of speaking, we are always coaching because there is almost always someone watching....


Role Models.... What motivated me...!


A Boy's Idol....


When I was a Junior at Olney High School, I began copying things in a scrap book, my "Commonplace Book" ...


What is a "Commonplace Book"


Commonplace books (or commonplaces) were a way to compile knowledge, usually by writing information into books.


They became significant in Early Modern Europe.


"Commonplace" is a translation of the Latin term locus communis which means "a theme or argument of general application", such as a statement of proverbial wisdom. In this original sense, commonplace books were collections of such sayings, such as John Milton's commonplace book. Scholars have expanded this usage to include any manuscript that collects material along a common theme by an individual. Such books were essentially scrapbooks filled with items of every kind: medical recipes, quotes, letters, poems, tables of weights and measures, proverbs, prayers, legal formulas. Commonplaces were used by readers, writers, students, and humanistsas an aid for remembering useful concepts or facts they had learned. Each commonplace book was unique to its creator's particular interests.


So, there you have it...! .... and this is mine... actually my whole Web-Site and Facebook Pages are a sort of Commonplace Book...


I collected poems, newspaper articles and other writings. It became a collection of material which I would use for motivation. At the time it was solely intended to help me personally, but, over time, it became a source that I would use as a coach to try and guide others. Sometime, during my sophomore year at Hofstra, I found this poem and I have kept a copy of it to this day.


This Poem motivated me and helped to keep me moving in the right direction... It was written by Stewart "Stu" Brynn, who was born in Pittsburgh, Pa. in 1934 and died in 2013.


He was a member of the U.S. Coast Guard and among other things he was the head football coach at Tabor College in Kansas.


A Boy's Idols....by Stu Byrnn


When I was six years old, I idolized two boys older than me by five and seven years. Both had all the makings of fine athletes. I watched them constantly as they caught a pass, hit a baseball, made a basket, and I pictured the day when I would be like them. I GREW AND THEY GREW.


I listened as they told of how they took it easy in practice sessions; how they refused to block for a teammate they didn't like; how they chewed Dentyne and rubbed their hands with after-shave lotion, so the coach wouldn't know they were smoking. I listened as they called their mother "old lady" and their father "old man"; as they called this teacher and that coach something else they spoke of Church and God as being non-existent.


I listened as they laughed about quitting a team; being thrown off a team; being thrown out of a game for fighting; being thrown out of school.


It thrilled me to catch a pass thrown by them, hit a ball pitched by them, or retrieve a basketball shot by them. My day was made when they would say "hello" or simply nod their head in my direction. They were my idols. I longed to be an athlete just like them.


I watched and listened as they bragged about cheating in school. I absorbed all of the ways of cribbing on exams: the hidden answers written on the palm of the hand, the half-opened book on the floor.


I listened as they bragged about how many beers they could drink; how many girls they had had; how many nights they had broken curfew.


I listened as they bragged about telling off a teacher; about stealing library books; about stealing equipment from the locker room.


I listened as they swore. Man, they were the greatest! They were my idols. I hoped to be an athlete just like them.


I GREW AND THEY GREW.


I became a man. Suddenly, I saw my life in perspective. I wondered about my two idols. Surely, they were successful; surely, they were all-Americans; surely, they were pillars of their community.


I searched and found them. Alas, both had given up struggling to establish themselves as plain, ordinary people. They had set no records, achieved no goals, set no world on fire.


Then I wondered: Could some young, aspiring athlete have idolized me? Had I led him down the same trail I had followed? Had he longed to be an athlete-- just like me? THEY HAVE GROWN OLDER AND SO HAVE I.


My sons with watch and listen to you because you are athletes. You will wear the Crimson and Grey. Many other sons will watch and listen to you, too. You are their idols. They will long to be athletes just like you.


YOU WILL GROW AND THEY WILL GROW.


Someday you will have sons. Perhaps my sons will be their idols. Your sons will want to be athletes just like them.


Once I had worshipped them. Now, no one in the community gave them a second look.


My parents: Could I ever repay them for the sorrow and anguish I had brought them?


My teachers and coaches: Could I ever befriend them? Other people who had suffered because of me: Could they ever forgive me? That young, aspiring athlete: Could he forgive me? Where is he now because of me?


Now as a parent, I love my sons deeply. I want them to love God. I want them to serve man. I want them to be athletes.
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So, don't forget... There is almost always someone watching.





This book is an appeal to all of us to do the best we can ... because in the end... It's the coach's fault... Ray "Ritz" Ingram


As for me, today I'm a coach and I've been a coach for a long time. As I look back over my life and ask myself the question "Why am I a coach?" The answer would be without question ...it's the coaches' fault... More on that in another section...


So.... Why read this book?


Why should anyone read this book? .. Will anything change in your life because you read this book? ..


Will it make you a better person? ..


Will it make you a better parent? ..


Will it make you a better coach? ..


Will it make you a better player? ..


Will it make you a better referee? ..


Will it have any positive effect on your life?


There's no way for me to answer that. There's no way for me to guarantee that anything you read here will have any effect whatsoever on anything that you do.


On the other hand, there is a possibility that something that I say might have an impact in some way, shape or form on some aspect of your life.


As a person and as a coach I have always believed that it's the little things that often make the most difference. It's not always some major event.


That's why, at practice, I spend so much time working on the little things ... making sure that a player makes a fake convincingly... that the players try to execute every movement in an offense with perfection.


I try to make sure that they learn all of the little things that are involved in each play. I try to make sure that they do all the little technical things right in shooting, dribbling, passing, rebounding and every other aspect of the game because I believe it's the little things that make the difference in the end.


Let's imagine that you run a play at the end of the game to get your best player a shot and there are only two seconds remaining in the game.


He gets the shot and the ball goes in the basket... but... the ref says the basket doesn't count because he didn't get the shot off in time. You ask yourself what happened... You look at the video and you see that he didn't use the screen properly and that allowed the defender to get through and that forced him further from the basket... or you see that the pass was not accurate and he had to reach for the ball and then gather himself before he could shoot.


There can be any number of other seemingly insignificant elements that caused him to use more time to get his shot...


Well, maybe we can look at this book in the same way...


Maybe most of the things you read in this book will have absolutely no effect on anything you do... but then maybe one sentence... one little comment about coaching, teaching, playing, officiating, or parenting will jump out at you...


Maybe one item, one sentence might strike a chord and influence you to think a little bit differently about something.


That one item may cause you to make a change in an offense or do something different with your kids, or do something different as a ref. If one sentence causes you to see your calls differently, coach your team a little differently, give one player a little more playing time or another player a little less playing time...


If something in this book results in your being less argumentative or better capable of holding your ground and doing what's best for you...


if one small suggestion makes a change in anything you do, then everything that I have written here will have served its purpose.





Chapter 3


A Few More Years…. A Few More Games.....


Some might be asking…


“Where do I get off giving others advice?” ... or …


“What are the qualifications or circumstances that led me to think that I have anything to offer?”
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It’s like Lou Rawls sang in his song … “I’ve had more chances to fly and more places to fall… It’s not that I’m wiser, it’s just that I’ve spent more time with my back to the wall” I was about 14 Years Old when I began listening to Lou Rawls. It was not just the sound of the Chicago native's voice that attracted my attention.


It was the message in the words. I could relate to "Dead End Street". I knew what the meaning was behind “Stormy Monday" and "Tobacco Road".... I understood the Lines about "the Eagle flies on Friday" and I knew a great many men who fit the description in "Street Corner Hustler's Blues".


There was another song which I now like. I couldn’t understand it then because it takes time (years) to really appreciate its meaning.


The title is "A couple more years..." It's really the story about why younger people listen (or should listen) to older people;


It's about why Children should listen to their parents;


It's about why Rookies should listen to Veterans and I guess it's about why Players should listen to their Coaches....


No, that does not mean that the aforementioned are always right, but there is something to be said for the knowledge which may come from their experiences.


Lou Rawls sings about being tired from running while others are learning to crawl, ... he says that "he didn't write the song, he just learned how to sing it"... in short, he has a couple of years on you, that's all.


Maybe that is what coaching is really all about.


You try and take the things you've learned over the years and pass them on to your players.


You review all the Games, you've played; all the Players you've played against and all the coaches you've worked with or coached against...


you put it all together and call it your view of the Game.


Does it mean that you are always right? … No!


Does it mean that you know everything about Basketball or Life? … No!


It just means that maybe you've played a few more Games than those you are trying to teach...!


Below are some the Games that I have played along the way.....


It’s a list of Players, Coaches and Jobs that I have been associated with over the years.


Players that I played or practiced with: Julius Erving, Walt Frazier, Terry Cummings, Rick Barry, Ralph Sampson,


Alex English, Nate Archibald, Ronnie Nunn, John Schumate, Walli Jones,


Billy Cunningham, Steve Mix, Calvin Murphy, Dean Memminger, Billy Paultz,


Billy Schaefer, Joe DuPre, Jim Valvano, Kevin Joyce, Bob McKillop, Detlef Musch,


Mike Koch, Henrich Roedel, Ed Ratliff, Matt Doherty, Ollie Taylor, Bill Melchioni,


Matt Goukas, Mike Riordan, Ernie Grunfeld, Bernard King, Dirk Nowitzki,


Walt Szcerbiak, Mike Dunleavy, Al Skinner and a few others….


Does any of this make me special? … No! .. but I learned a whole lot about playing basketball.


Coaches that I worked with or competed against:


Bob McKillop, Rick Pitino, Jerry Tarkinian, Mike Kryzewski, Dave Odom,


Kevin Loughery, Jim Valvano, Dale Brown, Sylvia Hatchell, Albert Schwarz,


Paul Lynner, Gary Walters, Jack Ramsey, George Ravelling, Jack Kraft, Pete Carril, Randy Wiel, Gayle Gaestenkors, Katie Meiers, Andy Landers, Rick Reeves


Coaching Stops along the way….


Long Island Lutheran Camps


Rick Barry Basketball Camps


Walt Frazier Basketball Camps - Hofstra University ... Assistant Coach Cold Spring Harbor HS ... Head Coach


Grace Lutheran School ... Head Coach


Fulda Germany DYA ... Head Coach (U-16 US-European Youth Champions)


FT Fulda Germany ... various League Championships incl. Oberliga und Regionalliga


TSV Weilheim (Damen 1.Basketball Bundesliga) 4.Platz und Ronchetti Cup


Davidson College ... Assistant Coach


Italian Junior National Women's Team ... Head Coach for Try-Outs / Trainings-Camp


Ritz Ingram Camps in Spain


George School (Philadelphia, Pa.) ... (lost Finals Game of Independent Schools Championship)


UNC Asheville Division-I Women’s Basketball (Head Coach)


S.Oliver Wuerzburg (1.Bundesliga)


ART Düsseldorf (Regionalliga Championship - Aufstieg 2.Bundesliga)


Artland Dragons (2.Bundesliga / 2.Bundesliga)


Quakenbrueck Dragons Women’s Basketball (2.Bundesliga and Youth Program)


BBV Leipzig Women (1.Bundesliga)


Bender Baskets Gruenberg Women (2.Bundesliga)


Does any of this make me special? … No! .. but I learned a whole lot about coaching basketball.





Chapter 4


Family


The Ingram Family….!


I'm not really sure how or where to begin with chapter.


My immediate family, in the beginning, consisted of my father (Thomas), my mother (Ella) and my brother (Gary) and myself (Raymond). I will come back later and explain why I said, "in the beginning".


It is fair to say that the relationship that existed between my mother and my father had a profound effect and made a lasting impression on me. I sometimes think that parents don't spend much time thinking about that.


I am not sure that they realize that the phrase I mentioned in the chapter on role models also applies in the home.


Or maybe they just don't notice that "there is always someone watching".


As soon as there are children in the home, situations can take on an entirely new dimension and dynamic. Because children observe the interpersonal relationship from the outset, and they see it repeatedly ...


everyday.... it provides the base for their own development. What they see shapes their opinions and values. It affects how they see others outside of their own homes and molds their expectations regarding their own relationships.


When children see harmony, respect, responsibility and affection shared between a mother and father. They assume that that is the way it's supposed to be. They open a file in their memory and it reads, that's what I want someday.


On the other hand, when a child sees his parents misbehaving or abusing each other the developmental process can become extremely complicated.


They can grow up thinking that that is normal. That can carry this bad behavior into their own relationships, which can be devastating.


Another possibility is that at some point they learn to understand that what they see is just what it describes... bad behavior. When that happens they often choose one of two paths.


They say to themselves, that is definitely not what I want and I will do my best to be different and make sure that my relationships are better.


Another possibility is that they say to themselves, "if that is what happens, then I don't want any part of it".


Maybe at this point you are asking "Why did I go off on this philosophical tangent?"


I did it because it sets the stage for what comes next, the relationship between Thomas Ingram and Ella Ingram, my parents.


When I was very young, I don't think I picked up on what was going on.


Maybe that is because I they made more of an effort to keep me from seeing it. Maybe it is because they were already (and often) separated. I don't remember many days of trips to relatives, family outings or fun vacations where it was just Mom, Dad, my brother and me.


It seems like my brother and I were always with one parent or the other.


We were constantly moving to different houses and the more I think about it, my father was seldom a part of the "moving party". It was more like my mother was moving to get away from him. Eventually he would show up and move in and the whole show would begin again. In Philadelphia, I can remember that we lived on Dauphin Street (near the then famous Uptown Theatre), Cayuga Street in North Philadelphia, Randolph Street and East Moreland Ave (this one was the last "Family Residence") are the locations that I can recall. I think there was one before Cayuga Street but I can't say for sure. Dauphin, Cayuga and Randolph were all locations that I lived in before I was 12 years old, so it is accurate to say that we moved around quite a bit. That means that there was little opportunity for childhood friendships and other relationships outside of the home. That brings me back to the premise that often we see and learn at home often provides the only real basis for forming our future.


To say that the relationship between Thomas and Ella was turbulent and confusing would be an understatement.


Did they love each other? I have no idea.


Did they trust each other? I have no idea.


Did they respect each other? I have no idea but everything I can remember tells me that the answer is no.


Did they even like each other? I really have no idea.


I can honestly say that I never saw an affectionate moment shared between the two of them. I never saw them kiss or hug each other. I can't even remember hearing either of them say to the other the words that sometimes slip out (even when the kids are present) during telephone conversations or when one of them is leaving the house ("I love you" or "I miss you" or "Can't wait to see you").


It may have happened but I never saw it.


What I did see shaped my life and continues to affect me to this day.


It has affected the way I am when I am around families ... I almost never go into the homes of others.


It has affected my view of personal relationships and is more than likely a reason for my avoidance of such.


I never knew, and now probably never will, why my parents always seemed to be separated. I mentioned that looking back it seems that she was trying to get away from him. I can understand that, because I was often witness to the beatings she took from him. He was a strong, athletic man. I know just how strong and athletic he was because he beat me too and I remember that, once he went into the "Beast-Mode" there was nothing I could do to stop him or get away from him.


Physically, she had no chance against him.


That raises the question... "Why did he do it?"


Was he just a mean and aggressive man who vented his frustration on others who could not defend themselves?


Was he provoked to the point that he had no option other than using physical force?


What drove him to the point where he felt that physically abusing others was the only alternative?


I have only three memories of my father. I mean three that involve only him and me.


That makes it hard for me to really evaluate the kind of man he was.


The first is positive. I don't know how old I was, but I may have been around seven or eight years old. He was driving a truck for Mrs. Smith's Pies ... Philadelphians know that Brand... For some reason that afternoon and night, he took me along for the ride. He let me go in the back and eat as much as I wanted to.


The second occasion that stands out might be the reason that Christmas has had little meaning to me for most of my life.


I remember a Christmas morning, maybe around 1959. There were relatives (on my mother's side) visiting from New York. I heard an argument escalating downstairs. To the best of my knowledge, it had to do with the fact that my Uncle Johnny-Ray and some others were smoking dope in the house. My father became increasingly angry and the ruckus got louder. So... here comes the stupid kid... I came to the top of the stairway and yelled... "It's Christmas, what is everybody fighting about?"


The Response…


My father was holding a shot-gun and as I saw him turn and the barrel come up, I just turned away as fast could and towards my room and jumped out of the window. I stayed away from the house for a few hours. When I returned, only my mother and brother were there. There were some holes in the wall from the pellets near where I had been standing. I would like to think that it was an accident.. that he didn’t realise that the trigger was that sensitive. No one ever talked about the incident.


Needless to say, my enthusiasm for celebrating Christmas was reduced dramatically. It would be many, many years later before my attitude toward that holiday would change. That would come as a result of contact with another family (The Ricketts). I will go into that in detail later.


The third and final memory that I have of my father was by far the one that left the most lasting mark on the relationship (if you can call what we experienced a relationship).


I was 14 years old and had just recently been released from a reform school (St. Michael’s School for Boys in Hoban Heights, Pennsylvania… more on that in another chapter).


I had not seen or spoken with my father since I was 11 years old. I was kept at St. Michael’s for two and one-half years and neither he nor my mother had come to visit during that time.


A number of things had changed. St. Michael’s was not a nice place. If you were not around in the 50’s and 60’s, you might have difficulty visualizing how reform schools were run back then. It was a time when juveniles were handled much differently than today. Later I will take you for stroll down that particular memory lane; but this section is about my family.


One of the things that changed is that I had grown up some. When I was sent away to St. Michael’s, I think I was about 4’11” tall. When I was released, I was close to 5’9”.


I believe my father was about 5’8”. I mention that because I think that he may have remembered the little boy that he used to beat, and therefore might have had some difficulty grasping that I was different.


Places like St. Michael’s can have monumental effects on the boys who are “sentenced” to go there.


Anyway, I had not been back in Philadelphia for very long. My mother had a small house in the Mt. Airy section of Philadelphia. My father was not living there. One day he came to visit. I have no idea what the circumstances were that existed between my mother and father and she never talked about him.


I was in my room and that familiar sound was coming from downstairs.


I heard my father yelling at my mother and then I heard him hit her.


When I was a little boy, I remember being helpless whenever that situation arose.


Back then I remember that I would wait until it was all over and he had left the house.


Then I would go to her and try and help. She would be crying and I could see the bruises and sometimes the blood. She would say that everything was okay and I remembered that all I could do was… “nothing”.


This time it was different. The strange thing was that I didn’t plan it or even think about it at the moment. It was an instinctive action. I walked to the top of the staircase and I could see my father standing near my mother lying on the floor.


I walked down and said… “Stop! If you hit her again, you’ll have to hit me too.”


He stopped and turned to face me. I remember it so vividly because he was so deliberate and almost calculating with his movements.


He looked me up and down … then he reached behind him and pulled out a switch-blade. I was a little bit stunned but like I said… St.


Michael’s changed kids. I reached for the staircase railing where a jacket was hanging and wrapped it around my arm for protection.


Again, he just stopped and seemed to be calculating. Then he said… “Okay … I’m leaving, but if I ever see you again, I’ll kill you” I never saw or heard from him again.


Was he a “good” man? I can’t say because I never really knew him. I know that he always seemed to be working. There was a time when I thought that he was trying to be a father who took care of his family.


The only real advice he ever game me was to not let anyone push me around. He was pretty hard on me but on the other hand, there were times that I wasn’t a “good” kid. Maybe he was using the beatings to force me to stop getting in trouble, because he knew where I was headed if I didn’t stop.


We never got the chance to grow together, so I will never know the answer.


So, that brings us back to the situation between my mother and my father.


Why did he beat her? He beat me because I was disobedient.. because I was getting in trouble and maybe sometimes just because he felt like it.


Was my mother disobedient? Was she breaking rules?


I know that they had been separated before I was born. I found out that I had a sister (Delores) and another brother (John) who didn’t live with us and that my father was not their father. I never learned how that came about. Could that have been the reason for his anger toward my mother?


Is that why he seemingly had no respect for her? Throughout my childhood, I think it’s fair to say that I was either very naive or maybe I just chose to ignore the reality.


My father seldom lived with us, but then there was Uncle Bob, Uncle Max und Uncle Jimmy. Back then, their true family status was less important to me than the fact that they were always willing to give me money. They gave my mother money and other stuff as well. They often paid the bills for electricity, gas and rent.


No… I cannot and will not sit in judgement over the actions of my mother and father.


I can only evaluate them as they pertain to me. They might have laid the foundation that led me to believe that families are a TV Productions like “Leave it to Beaver”, “Father knows Best” and “The Nelson Family”.


For a long time, I thought that if my parents were examples of marriage or the heads of families, then I’d rather be by myself. I can also remember that as boy growing up, I never invited friends to come to my house …and I never went to house of others.


Especially around those so-called special times like Christmas, Thanksgiving or Easter, I felt it was best to go my own way.


Despite all of the circumstances, mitigating or otherwise, maybe the things that most affected me because of my parents’ behaviour were: Because of the general behavior my mother, and her specific behavior towards me (that explanation will come in another section), I developed a lack of trust. It became very difficult for me to allow myself to rely on anyone and I have always tried to avoid situations that call for me to depend on someone.


As for my father, his lasting accomplishment was to inspire in me an absolute disdain for any man who hits a woman. To be sure, there are those among you who will consider that a sexist remark. That’s your prerogative. As for me, I stand by my opinion.


To conclude: Kids grow up and either imitate what they experience or at least carry it over in part to their own actions. As I state repeatedly, “There is always someone watching”.


In your house, you are the coach …and if your kids, or your students or your players are developing bad habits or embracing the wrong principles … Then maybe “It’s the Coach’s Fault”.


That brings me to the last member of my immediate family that I know enough about to mention in this narrative, my brother … Gary Thomas Ingram Gary was older than I by a little more than one year. His birthday was July 6, 1949.


When we were children, he was the leader. I guess I sort of admired him.


By the time I was 10 years old, I had the feeling that he was better in just about everything, except school. He could dance and sing - he could run faster - if I had to find one word to describe him - he was “slick”.


He always seemed to have a way to get around doing things, or to get people to trust him. He was not one for hard work, yet he always managed to get the things he wanted.


That was not always positive. I was about 11 years old when I began accompanying him on some of his escapades and that’s when I also started down the path that would eventually get me into serious trouble.


That same time was possibly the first “major crossroad” in my life. (I’ll talk more about “Crossroads” later.)


I can’t really say much more about my brother because after I was sentenced in 1961, I didn’t see him for almost three years. We had both been sentenced on the same day. He was sent in one direction and I was sent in another.


I am certain that, at some time, everyone has watched one of those “Dumbest Crooks Videos. Well, if there had been YouTube Videos back then, I am just as certain that my brother and I would have been featured in one.


The incident that probably would have gotten us that notorious recognition had to do with a laundromat. My brother had a job cleaning up in the small laundromat in our neighborhood. We had no money and hardly anything to eat, so we decided to empty the washers and dryers.


No, we didn’t break in late at night…


No, we didn’t wait until it was closed…


We did it around 11:00 a.m. on a Saturday…


At least we waited to make sure that there was no one inside … and that was probably the only “half-way” intelligent part of this caper.


We went from machine to machine. We broke the locks with a screwdriver - the machines were not nearly as sophisticated or secure as today’s machines and there were no video cameras back then.


Then we got stupid again.


Did we quietly slip away to a hide-out or some other safe place?


Did we go home and stash our loot somewhere where our mother wouldn’t find it?


We actually hadn’t thought that part out. “Duuh”!!!


Picture two little boys running (literally running) down the street with their pockets full of quarters (from the washers) and dimes (from the dryers).


Where did these two geniuses run?


To the corner grocery store. This particular grocery store was about 100 yards from the laundromat. It was more than a grocery store. It was one of the favourite spots for the kids in the neighborhood. They not only made great sandwiches and shakes, but they also had Pinball Machines … Old-School Pinball Machines where you could win free games if you scored enough points.


That’s where Dumb and Dumber they went. They bought Tastycakes and Ice-Cream. They played Pinball Machines. They had a great time.


They never thought to wonder if the store owner or his wife or their two sons were asking themselves where these two clowns had gotten so much money. The fact that everything we bought was paid for with coins, might not have set off an alarm right away, because we were always bringing in empty bottles from factories and construction sites where the workers would leave their soft-drink bottles after lunch.


However, after an hour or so, they might have begun to get suspicious.


The final clue that would tell them that something was not all “on the up-and-up” may have come when we dumped a small mountain of coins on the counter and asked for paper money in exchange.


By the way, there is one small fact about the owners that I might not have mentioned.


The family that owned the store was one of the best families in our neighborhood.


The Guggliamucci’s were well liked by everyone. They had two stores on opposite corners. One was a small restaurant - best Philly-Cheese-Steaks on the planet.


The other was the corner grocery store and favorite hangout.


The owners were the brothers John and Joseph Guggliamucci …. Both worked for the City of Philadelphia … as Policemen.


Needless to say, by around two or three o’clock that Saturday afternoon, the mystery of “Who had robbed the laundromat” had been solved and we were on our way to Juvenile Hall - known in Philadelphia as the “Youth Study Center” Anyway, as a result of a number of incidents like this, we stood before Judge Hoffmann of the Juvenile Court in Philadelphia. All of the kids who were regular visitors at the Center knew that when you finally got Judge Hoffmann, you were probably not going to be sent home again.


There we stood, my mother sat in the background. Because my brother’s record was much worse than mine, Judge Hoffman told him that he was being sent to Camp Hill (State Correctional Institution).


This is what Wikipedia says about Camp Hill – “SCI Camp Hill opened in 1941 as the Industrial School at White Hill for Young Offenders and received Huntingdon Reformatory's juvenile population en masse. In 1975, it was ruled that SCI Camp Hill was not an appropriate place to house juvenile offenders, and in 1977 the institution began housing adult male offenders. It now serves as the state's sole diagnostic and classification center for men and houses adult male offenders.”


After listening to the sentence that was given to my brother, I had no idea what to expect.


Then Judge Hoffmann began to speak.


He said that despite the fact that I seemed to be constantly skipping school and getting in trouble, I appeared to be maintaining very good grades. He made some comments about the results of various intelligence tests and said that he couldn’t understand or accept what I was doing to myself and that I was destroying any chance that I might have to make a better life for myself.


He said, “for some reason, I believe that there is still chance for you”. “I am going to send you to St. Michael’s School for Boys and I don’t want to ever see you in my court again” Judge Hoffmann probably saved my life.


Anyway, my brother and I went our separate ways and I didn’t see him again for almost three years. When I was released from St. Michael’s I saw him and at 17 or 18 he had a choice of jail or the military … they often did that back then. He chose the military. He was shortly thereafter dishonourably discharged and I never saw or heard from him again.


!!Late Entry!!... In September of 2017, I was having some health issues and I needed to get some information regarding possible inherited illness in my family.


I found out that my brother was dead. He died in 2013 and I did some research and was able to obtain his death certificate. I found out what I really didn‘t want to know - he died of cancer at the age of 64.


The positive aspect of this event was that from his death certificate, I also found out a few of the things that had occurred during his life.




	In the box „Marital Status “- Divorced


	In the box „Highest Education“ - master’s Degree (something I never did)


	In the box „Occupation “- Social Worker





Apparently, Gary also crossed paths with some people (Coaches) who changed the direction of his life.


Maybe some of the events that occurred along his journey provided the impetus for change.


I will probably never know what attributed to the change.


Fact is - he changed.


Fact is - he made a complete turn-around and became a social worker.


Who knows how many people he was able to help repair or improve their lives?


There have been times when I wondered what might have become of him.


The circumstances responsible for my obtaining the information were not the best, but at least I got some small insight into his life and I guess I can be thankful for that.


Family is a word that, for a long time, had no meaning for me... and at the same time, it has a special meaning.


How is that possible? ... You ask.


That is a story in itself.


You see I had one ... but not really. That brings me to my disdain for those who make excuses for themselves or for others based on the fact that an individual comes from a broken home or a dysfunctional family.


To be sure, being raised by a single parent, or having been in foster care, or having abusive parents or siblings can all have an effect on someone's development, but these things should not be used as the sole determining factor and neither should they be used by individuals as a crutch or a reason for not trying to better one's lot in life.


Someone much wiser than I said we have two choices. We can choose to accept the situation into which we are born or we can try and determine for ourselves what our situation will be in the future. I don't want to over-simplify that statement... there are always aspects that we cannot control and unknowns which constantly appear and affect our environment and our decisions... So that sometimes, despite our best intentions and most concentrated efforts, we fail... but we have to keep trying.


So … what ever happened to my Nuclear-Family


Mother… Ella Jane Oliver


I have only touched on some aspects of the peculiar relationship surrounding my growing up in other chapters, so here I will only try and complete the picture.


As I said earlier, I will make no attempt to judge my mother for her actions. I am sure that she had reasons for the things she did.


Those few who know the circumstances that I grew up in have voiced mixed opinions. That too is their prerogative.


Just as with my father, there are not many childhood memories filled with good times, no baby pictures, or pictures of me growing up, no videos, no keepsakes; in fact, there is nothing that ties me with any member of my family.


I have always made a point of trying to make sure that parents of young players that I coach get involved in what their kids do. I have made no secret of the fact that I am disappointed that no member of my family has ever seen me play or coach.


Even though I am not one for sentiment, I do sometimes think that it would have been nice to look up in the stands and see someone there or to come home and talk about how good or bad you played.


Never happened.


Without boasting or exaggerating, I think I can say that by the time I was 15, I was getting pretty good. I was playing Point-Guard at Stetson Jr. High and was beginning to be noticed. My Coaches and Teachers had begun looking out for me (more on that later).


My mother on the other hand was apparently cooking up plans. “Uncle” Jimmy had come into our lives (with his Mustang).


I remember as if it were yesterday… One night, with no particular leadin she said, “Gary, I worry about you. I don’t know what’s going to happen to you; but Raymond, you’ll be alright because you’re a survivor”.


I didn’t give it much thought. She had been sending a message.


The next Friday night I came home from school and basketball practice and there was no one home. I gave that no thought either because she regularly went out on Fridays and didn’t come home.


I spent all day Saturday at Mann Recreation Center (best basketball games in the city). When I came home Saturday night, she was not there … no big deal.


Sunday was the same and again, no big deal.


Monday morning came and things were a little different. I had to go to school and I had nothing to eat and no lunch money.


I went into her room to ask her for something and it was empty…. No clothes, no make-up items… nothing… not even a note.


That’s when it struck me… I was alone! I had just turned sixteen.


That was the last time I saw her. I never got a letter or a phone call or anything that would tell me where she was and why she left.


The next encounter came when I was a sophomore in college at Hofstra University. I think it was late October. I was at practice when our Head Coach Paul Lynner stopped practice and said, “Raymond, you need to put on your sweats and go back to the dorm”. I asked him why. He said, “Just put on your sweats and go back to dorm”.


Again, I asked why and he said, “Your mother is waiting there for you.”


I am not sure how to describe what I was feeling or thinking. I told him that we were practicing and that I didn’t want to go. And again, he said, “Just put on your sweats and go back to dorm”.


So, I dressed and walked back to Tower E and there, in the center of the lobby stood Ella Ingram. I can remember that, as I walked towards her, I began to get angry.


I didn’t give her a chance to talk. I simply asked. “What do you want?”


She said something like “I want to make up for things and be your mother”.


I remember that I thought for a minute before I answered. My response is chiselled in my memory.


I said, “Four years ago when I was hungry and sleeping on the street, I needed a mother. You weren’t there then. Now, I have a full scholarship and a good chance to make something of myself. I needed you then - I don’t need you now”.


I turned and went back to practice.


I guess that was her one attempt to ease her conscience so she could say to herself and her friends that she tried to fix things because she never called or wrote again.


In fact, I never heard from or about again until this:


Received on 26. February 2014…


Hi Lauritz,


My name is Tiffany and I live next door to your mother Ella. She asked me to see if I could locate you because she's been sick and also has other news for you. I found your website and this email address for you.


Please give her a call at 248-200-7609.


Thank you,


Tiffany


Sent from my iPhone


My initial response…..


Hello Tiffany… First I’d like to thank you for doing your research… I must however add that I am somewhat skeptical concerning the e-Mail.


There are so, so many “scam” operations bouncing around the internet that it makes it difficult to separate truth from fiction…. That being said…


I can only add what you must already know…. if this is a valid request from your side…. I have had no contact with anyone in my family since my college basketball days… and that is further in the past than I care to admit.


The last time I saw my mother was when she came to my college to “visit”. My coach had to force me to leave practice to see her and I don’t think I treated her very well… In my own defense… I think the term of the 60’s … “angry black man” fits my mood at the time. I was bitter. I had been left to fend for myself and it was not easy… but thanks to the game of basketball and some coaches, I survived.


I never forgot something she said … a few weeks before she disappeared… She said …”Gary I worry about… but not Raymond, he’s a survivor”


Without knowing what was lurking just around the corner, I guess I took those words to heart… and that is exactly what I have done… In the words of Lou Rawls… “There have been some good days and some bad, bad days… but I’m okay at the moment…


Anyway, I tried a few times to locate my mother, my brother yes and even my father whose parting words to me were “If I ever see you again… I’ll kill you"… That because I would not let him beat my mother after I had returned from Reform School... Once I visited Philadelphia and even tried to have the police help me locate them… So, enough history… besides we don’t know each other… I just wanted to make it clear that if it appears that I chose to close that chapter on my life… It was with good reason.


How should I now respond your message…. …. regardless… as I said in the opening… Thanks for taking the time… Ray Ingram As an afterthought…. you/she/whoever… might find this interesting…..


http://www.ritzbball.de/return-to-philly.html
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